KENT COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY WEST WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019



This page was intentionally left blank

Kent County Water Authority

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Table of Contents

Independent Auditor's Report	2
Management's Discussion and Analysis	5
Basic Financial Statements:	2
Proprietary Funds:	2
Statement of Net Position	2
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position14	ł
Statement of Cash Flows16	5
Fiduciary Funds:	3
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position18	3
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position)
Notes to Financial Statements)
Required Supplementary Information:	3
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios	3
Schedule of Employer Contributions)
Schedule of Investment Returns	Ĺ
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information – Net Pension Liability	2
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios43	3
Schedule of OPEB Contributions and Schedule of Money-Weighted Rate of Return	ł
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - OPEB44	ł
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	5

HAGUE, SAHADY & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 126 President Avenue Fall River, MA 02720 TEL. (508) 675-7889 FAX (508) 675-7859 www.hague-sahady.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of the Kent County Water Authority West Warwick, Rhode Island

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Kent County Water Authority ("the Authority"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Authority, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Prior-Year Comparative Information

The financial statements include partial prior-year comparative information related to the statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and the statement of cash flows for the Authority's business-type activities and the statement of fiduciary net position and the statement of changes in the fiduciary net position for the Authority's aggregate remaining fund information. Such information does not include all of the information required for a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, from which such partial information was derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, Pension Plan information, and Other Post Employment Benefit information, as listed on the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated September 4, 2020 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Haque, Sahady 2 Co. PC

Hague, Sahady & Co., CPA's, P.C.

Fall River, Massachusetts September 4, 2020 This page was intentionally left blank

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

This section of the Authority's annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

The Kent County Water Authority ("the Authority") is a public benefit corporation created pursuant to existing under Chapter 1740 of the Public Laws of 1946, at Chapter 16 of Title 39 of the Rhode Island General Laws (1956), as amended, and is subject to the supervisory and regulatory powers of the State Public Utilities Commission (PUC).

The Authority provides water supply services through metered sales in the communities of Coventry, Warwick, West Warwick, East Greenwich, West Greenwich, and in smaller sections of Cranston, Scituate, and North Kingstown. The Authority is responsible for operating and maintaining the water supply system.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority's basic financial statements. The financial statements are organized as follows:

- The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Authority's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as "net position". Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.
- The Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the Authority's net position changed during the most recent reporting period. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., earned but unbilled revenue and earned but unused vacation leave).
- The Statement of Cash Flows presents information depicting the Authority's cash flow activities for the most recent reporting period and the effect that these activities had on the Authority's cash and cash equivalent balances.
- The Fiduciary Financial Statements provide information about net position restricted or held in trust for benefits under the Authority's employee benefit plan and changes in net position for benefits.
- The Notes to Financial Statements present additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages indicated on the table of contents of this report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Authority maintains a relatively strong financial performance. Management continues to carefully evaluate the Authority's finances to ensure optimum performance. In addition to meeting all debt covenants, outstanding debt and cash reserves were kept at levels appropriate for maintaining favorable bond ratings. The following are the key financial highlights:

- Net position increased \$9 million in fiscal year 2020 compared to \$9.2 million increase in fiscal year 2019, the difference in increase between years is mainly due to depreciation and other operating results.
- Total assets and deferred outflow of resources were \$201 million in fiscal year 2020 compared to \$195 million in 2019, which exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflow of resources by \$177 million in fiscal year 2020 and \$168 million in fiscal year 2019.
- The Authority's debt to equity ratio was 9.65 % and 10.02 % at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, indicating the continuance of capacity to issue additional debt.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The operations of the Authority are accounted for in a Proprietary Fund Type (Enterprise Fund). The Authority operates in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the costs of providing goods or services to the general public, support of a Capital Improvement Program, and funding of an Infrastructure Replacement Program are financed or recovered through user charges approved by the Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission (RIPUC).

Condensed financial information from the statements of net position and operations is presented below. The statement of net position provides information on the assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows or resources of the Authority, as well as the net position. Over time, increases and decreases in the Authority's net position is the indicator of whether the financial health of the Authority is improving or deteriorating. The statement of operations of the Authority reflects all revenues earned and all expenses incurred for each fiscal year.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Condensed Statement of Net Position

	2020	2019
Current assets	\$ 7,947,492	\$ 8,091,602
Other noncurrent assets	28,689,588	28,022,092
Capital assets, net	163,823,311	158,031,326
Total assets	200,460,391	194,145,020
Deferred outflows of resources		
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension	810,829	461,074
Total deferred outflows of resources	810,829	461,074
Current liabilities	6,463,417	5,599,300
Noncurrent liabilities	16,618,842	19,499,118
Total liabilities	23,082,259	25,098,418
Deferred inflows of resources		
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension	465,915	525,390
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB	-	5,059
Gain on refunding	491,300	727,123
Total deferred inflows of resources	957,215	1,257,572
Net position:		
Net investment in capital assets	163,823,311	141,156,326
Restricted for debt service	3,154,000	3,154,000
Restricted for infrastructure replacement	282,626	282,626
Unrestricted net position	9,973,941	23,657,152
Total net position	\$177,233,878	\$168,250,104

The table above reflects a decrease in current assets of \$144,110 from FY 2020 to FY 2019. This decrease reflects a decrease in accounts receivable and decrease in cash. There is also a significant increase in capital assets (net) of \$5,791,985 from FY 2019 to FY 2020. This increase is the result of the Authority capitalizing completed construction in progress and other project and implementing and capitalizing the meter changeout program.

The largest portion of the Authority's net position, 84.86%, reflects its net investment in capital assets. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide water treatment and collection services to its customers. Consequently, only the unrestricted net assets are available for future spending. Although the Authority's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. In FY20, the Authority's net position totaled \$177.2 million, an increase of \$8.9 million or 5.34% from the previous year. Total assets in FY20 were \$200.4 million, an increase of \$6.3 million or 3.25% from the previous year. Total liabilities decreased by \$2.0 million or 8.03%, mainly due to principal payments on revenue bonds.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Authority ended FY 2020 with an increase in net position of \$8,983,774. The Authority has included a Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as follows.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

	2020	2019
Operating revenues:		
Water	\$ 20,571,461	\$ 20,999,987
Hydrant fees	1,805,483	1,803,879
Other	294,372	415,885
Total operating revenue	22,671,316	23,219,751
Operating expenses:		
Source of supply	4,263,130	4,677,939
Pumping	890,596	902,394
Transmission and distribution	1,028,279	1,364,776
Water treatment	613,052	471,796
Customer accounts	508,821	474,952
Administrative and general	3,262,138	3,230,409
Depreciation	3,109,197	2,865,633
Taxes other than income	208,755	200,831
Total operating expenses	13,883,968	14,188,730
Operating income	8,787,348	9,031,021
Nonoperating income (expense):		
Capital contributions	3,999	5,153
Interest income	449,517	584,876
Interest expense	(257,090)	(379,261)
Net non-operating income (expense)	196,426	210,768
Increase in net position	8,983,774	9,241,789
Net position at beginning of year	168,250,104	159,008,315
Net position at end of year	\$177,233,878	\$168,250,104
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

REVENUES

Water user fees are the Authority's primary source of revenue, representing approximately 90.7% of total operating revenues. Fiscal Year 2020 water user fee revenue was \$20,571,461 which is \$428,526 less than the prior year and other operating revenue decreased by \$121,513.

The operating income for FY20 totaled \$8.8 million, representing a decrease of 2.7% from the previous year, which are mainly due to the increase in delinquent and shut off account accounts due to COVID-19 which increase by 14% and 7%, respectively.

EXPENSES

Total operating expenses in FY 2020 decreased by \$304,762 over the prior year. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease of transmission and distribution expenses.

Net nonoperating income of \$196,426 is primarily related to interest income of \$449,517. The largest offset to the non-operating revenue are interest expense of \$257,090, which is related to payment on long-term debt.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of FY 2020, the Authority had \$164 million invested in capital assets. This amount represents an increase of \$5.79 million, or 3.67% over last year. The following table summarizes the Authority's capital assets and changes therein, for the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019.

	FY 2020	FY 2019
Capital assets		
Land	\$ 1,836,045	\$ 1,836,045
Construction in progress	8,737,157	9,546,667
Buildings and improvements	15,513,181	15,504,665
Infrastructure	163,848,792	156,259,566
Machinery and equipment	2,796,002	783,459
Vehicles	790,416	793,823
Total capital assets	193,521,593	184,724,225
Less accumulated depreciation	29,698,282	26,692,899
Capital assets, net	\$ 163,823,311	\$158,031,326

For more information relating to capital asset activity refer to Note 3 accompanying the basic financial statements.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

LONG-TERM DEBT

Currently the Authority has two General Revenue Bonds outstanding at the end of FY20, totaling \$13,430,000 million at par value.

2012 Series "A"	\$11,470,000
2017 Series "A"	\$12,000,000

Currently the Authority has a Moody's rating of Aa3 and a S&P rating of AA-.

During FY20, the Authority paid approximately \$3.4 million in principal on outstanding issuances and \$257 thousand of interest on outstanding issuances.

The Authority is required to establish and maintain rates and charges at levels sufficient so that total net revenues in each year during which bonds are outstanding will equal at least 125% of the bond debt service requirement during such year less the amount, if any, of bond proceeds available to pay interest becoming due in such year on bonds outstanding as of the first day of such year. The Authority has exceeded the 125% debt service coverage requirement of the Resolution in each year since the 2001 issue.

For more information relating to long-term debt activity refer to Note 4 accompanying the basic financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Management has evaluated its economic factors for FY2020. During the final quarter of FY2020 and continuing into FY2020, KCWA was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. KCWA made the necessary adjustments to ensure the continued delivery of safe drinking water during these trying times. The Authority staffed 50% of the workforce in the office and 50% working from home, then alternated weeks from March 23, 2020 through May 31, 2020. Beginning on June 1, 2020 the Authority returned to full staff and normal operations in the office and field.

The Authority participated in the RI Public Commission's (RIPUC) directive to halt the shut-off of services for nonpayment, and only mailed monthly bills and delinquent notices. In addition, the Authority have been offering payment plans to all customers experiencing difficulty paying their water bills on time due to the pandemic. The Authority continues to pay close attention to the financial impact of COVID-19 on billings, cash collections and receivables.

In preparation of the FY2021 annual budget, historical data as well as anticipated expenditures were used as contributing factors. Budgeted revenues are estimated to decrease 3% from actual revenues from FY2020 as industrial/commercial water consumption continues to be negatively impacted by COVID-19. Budgeted expenditures for FY2021 are estimated to decrease about 4% as compared to actual expenses from FY2020.

The Authority filed an abbreviated rate filing for a rate reduction in an application submitted January 31, 2020 to the RIPUC Docket 5012. A settlement agreement was executed between the Authority and the Division of Public Utilities and Carriers (collectively, the Parties) resolving the issues in the docket. There were no intervenors in this docket. The Parties agreed that the Authority will reduce operating revenue in the amount of \$2,601,409 to support total operating revenue in the amount of \$21,343,396. The effective date of the new rates is September 1, 2020. If approved by the RIPUC, the bill impact for an average residential customer using 10,000 cubic feet of water per year is a decrease off \$102.75 per year from \$677.74 to \$574.99 or (15.2%).

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is intended to provide an overview of the financial picture of the Kent County Water Authority. Any further questions regarding any of the information contained within this report may be directed to the Executive Director or Director of Finance and Human Resources at P.O. Box 192, West Warwick, RI 02893.

This page was intentionally left blank

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS		
	2020	2019
Current assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 431,935	\$ 504,164
Accounts receivable, less allowance of \$156,583 in 2020		
and \$156,805 in 2019	2,821,445	2,906,372
Unbilled water revenue	1,154,827	1,131,702
Materials and supplies inventory	385,285	395,364
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trustee		
for current portion of long-term debt	3,154,000	3,154,000
Total current assets	7,947,492	8,091,602
Noncurrent assets		
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trustee	28,406,962	27,739,466
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trust -		
Infrastructure replacement	282,626	282,626
Total noncurrent assets	28,689,588	28,022,092
Capital assets		
Depreciable, net	153,250,109	146,648,614
Nondepreciable	10,573,202	11,382,712
Total capital assets	163,823,311	158,031,326
Total assets	200,460,391	194,145,020

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources		
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB	2,132	-
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension	810,829	461,074
Total deferred outflows of resources	812,961	461,074

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020 and 2019

LIABILITIES

	2020			
Current liabilities				
Accounts payable	2,383,814	1,622,979		
Accrued interest expense	212,236	268,489		
Accrued liabilities	300,113	270,578		
Long-term debt due within one year	3,567,254	3,437,254		
Total current liabilities	6,463,417	5,599,300		
Noncurrent liabilities				
Long-term debt, net	9,846,608	13,413,862		
Net pension liability	1,413,363	945,452		
Net OPEB liability	5,358,871	5,139,804		
Total noncurrent liabilities	16,618,842	19,499,118		
Total liabilities	23,082,259	25,098,418		
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES				
Deferred inflows of resources				
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension	465,915	525,390		
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB	-	5,059		
Gain on refunding	491,300	727,123		
Total deferred inflows of resources	957,215	1,257,572		
NET POSITION				
Net position				
Net investment in capital assets	163,823,311	137,831,326		
Restricted for debt service	3,154,000	3,154,000		
Restricted for infrastructure replacement	282,626	282,626		
Unrestricted net position	9,973,941	26,982,152		
Total net position	\$ 177,233,878	\$ 168,250,104		

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

	2020	2019
Operating revenues		
Water	\$ 20,571,461	\$ 20,999,987
Hydrant fees	1,805,483	1,803,879
Other	294,372	415,885
Total operating revenue	22,671,316	23,219,751
Operating expenses		
Source of supply	4,263,130	4,677,939
Pumping	890,596	902,394
Transmission and distribution	1,028,279	1,364,776
Water treatment	613,052	471,796
Customer accounts	508,821	474,952
Administrative and general	3,262,138	3,230,409
Depreciation	3,109,197	2,865,633
Taxes other than income	208,755	200,831
Total operating expenses	13,883,968	14,188,730
Operating income	8,787,348	9,031,021
Nonoperating income (expense)		
Capital contributions	3,999	5,153
Interest income	449,517	584,876
Interest expense	(257,090)	(379,261)
Net non-operating income (expense)	196,426	210,768
Increase in net position	8,983,774	9,241,789
Net position at beginning of year	168,250,104	159,008,315
Net position at end of year	\$177,233,878	\$168,250,104

This page was intentionally left blank

Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

	2020	2019
Cash flows from operating activities		
Cash received from customers	\$22,733,118	\$23,212,098
Payments to employees	(1,996,152)	(2,078,370)
Payments to suppliers and services	(7,705,481)	(9,091,911)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities	13,031,485	12,041,817
Cash flows from capital and related financial activities		
Capital additions	(8,901,182)	(4,629,516)
Capital contributions	3,999	5,153
Principal paid in debt	(3,673,077)	(3,553,077)
Interest paid on capital related debt	(257,090)	(379,261)
Interest expense	(56,253)	(53,979)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities	(12,883,603)	(8,610,680)
Cash flows from investing activities		
Interest and dividends received	449,517	584,876
Net cash provided by investing activities	449,517	584,876
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	597,399	4,016,013
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year	31,680,256	27,664,243
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year	32,277,655	31,680,256
Cash and cash equivalents, per the statement of net position	431,935	504,164
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trustee		
for current portion of long term debt	3,154,000	3,154,000
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trustee (Note 3)	28,406,962	27,739,466
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trustee-Infrastructure		
replacement (Note 3)	282,626	282,626
Total cash and cash equivalents, per the statement of net position	\$32,275,523	\$31,680,256

Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities		
Operating income	\$ 8,787,348	\$ 9,031,021
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities		
Depreciation expense	3,109,197	2,865,633
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net	84,927	(92,711)
(Increase) decrease in unbilled water revenue	(23,125)	85,058
(Increase) decrease in material, supplies and inventory	10,079	(14,770)
(Increase) decrease in NPL deferred outflows	(349,755)	57,280
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable	760,835	(52,420)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities	29,535	(6,300)
Increase (decrease) in water quality protection charges payable	-	-
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (NPL)	467,911	(240,904)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability (NOL)	219,067	201,307
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows	(64,534)	208,623
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$13,031,485	\$12,041,817

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2020 and 2019

	Pension Trust		OPEB Trust	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
ASSETS				
Investments, at fair value	\$6,502,010	\$ 6,466,735	\$ 262,099	\$ 174,625
Total assets	6,502,010	6,466,735	262,099	174,625
LIABILITIES				
None				
NET POSITION				
Held in trust for other post-employment benefits	-	-	262,099	174,625
Restricted for pension	6,502,010	6,466,735		
TOTAL NET POSITION	\$ 6,502,010	\$ 6,466,735	\$ 262,099	\$ 174,625

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

	Pensi	on Trust	OPEB Trust		
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
ADDITIONS					
Contributions					
Employer contributions	\$ 249,230	\$ 262,152	\$175,054	\$ 167,695	
Total contributions	249,230	262,152	175,054	167,695	
Investment income					
Net investment income	166,764	351,147	7,474	13,455	
Total investment income	166,764	351,147	7,474	13,455	
Total additions	415,994	613,299	182,528	181,150	
DEDUCTIONS					
Actual and service benefits payments	380,719	266,738	95,054	87,695	
Total deductions	380,719	266,738	95,054	87,695	
Change in net position	35,275	346,561	87,474	93,455	
Net Position - Beginning	6,466,735	6,120,174	174,625	81,170	
Net Position - Ending	\$6,502,010	\$ 6,466,735	\$ 262,099	\$ 174,625	

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Primary Government

The Kent County Water Authority ("the Authority") was created by General Assembly of the State of Rhode Island on April 24, 1946 and was organized on July 8, 1946. The Authority serves as the governing body of the Kent County Water District, a political subdivision of the State of Rhode Island. The Authority is subject to the regulations of the Public Utility Commission of the State of Rhode Island (RIPUC).

The Authority provides water supply services through metered sales in the communities of Warwick, West Warwick, Coventry, East Greenwich, North Kingstown, Cranston, Scituate and West Greenwich. The Authority is also responsible for acquiring, constructing, improving, operating, and maintaining the water supply system. The Authority's source of water supply is principally through purchases of water from the Providence Water Supply Board and Warwick Water Department with the remaining amount produced from its own wells.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into two major categories: proprietary and fiduciary.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to the private sector. The operations of the Authority are accounted for on a Proprietary Fund Type (Enterprise Fund) basis. Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other uses. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Authority is determined by its measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operations are included on the statement of net position. The statement of net position presents information on the Authorities assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows. Differences between these amounts are reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating. Net position is segregated into three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted net position.

Proprietary fund revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable; expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. When restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority's practice to use restricted resources first.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Fiduciary Fund

Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust (OPEB) and Pension Trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for the payment of benefits other than pensions. The OPEB Trust Fund accumulates resources for future retiree health and insurance benefits for eligible retirees.

OPEB and Pension trust fund financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are recognized when due. Investment income is recognized when earned and expenses (benefits and administration) are recognized when they are due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, it is the Authority's policy to use restricted resources first.

Component Units

Component Units are included in the Authority's reporting entity if their operational and financial relationships with the Authority are significant. Pursuant to the criteria established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), no component units were identified for inclusion in the accompanying financial statements.

The Authority is considered a related organization of the State of Rhode Island for financial reporting purposes. The Authority is reported as a related organization of the State of Rhode Island, and not as a component unit, based on the criteria of GASB Statement No. 14 "The Financial Reporting Entity", as amended by GASB Statement No. 39 "Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units" and as amended by GASB Statement No. 61 "Financial Reporting Entity - Omnibus".

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (held by trustee) include highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. Restricted cash has been classified as noncurrent as it primarily represents unspent bond proceeds restricted for future capital spending.

Marketable Securities - Marketable securities included in funds held by trustee are stated at fair value.

Receivables - Fixed fees for water usage are billed to all customers in advance on a monthly basis. Consumption based fees are billed in arrears on a monthly basis, based on estimated and actual water consumption meter readings.

The allowance for doubtful accounts for June 30, 2020 was \$156,583 This estimate is based off of 5% of the most recent 90 days receivable and 10% of any receivable older than 90 days.

Materials and Supplies Inventory - Materials and supplies inventory is stated at the lower of cost (average cost method) or market.

Capital Assets - Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated remaining useful lives of the applicable assets. The capitalization threshold is any individual item with a total cost equal to or greater than \$5,000. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expenses as incurred. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

	Years
Infrastructure	75
Building & Improvement	20
Machinery & Equipment	10
Vehicles	5

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Construction in Progress - Construction in progress consists of the capital projects' design, planning and construction costs. Upon completing the project and finalizing the financial transaction, the construction in progress is transferred into the completed project capital asset account. Once transferred, the Authority will start to depreciate the completed capital project.

Capital Contributions - Capital contributions consist of property, plant, and equipment paid for by customers for water installations. Once the installation is complete, the property, plant, and equipment transfer to the Authority.

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue represents amounts billed in the current fiscal year for pretreatment fees relating to the subsequent fiscal year.

Long-Term Debt – Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond. Long-term debt payables are reported net of the applicable bond premium.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial position can report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate section represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that later date.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate section represents the acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until a later date. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were \$812,961 and \$461,074 in deferred outflows relating to pensions, and \$957,215 and \$1,257,572 deferred inflows related to pension, gains on refunding, and OPEB.

Operating Revenues and Expenses – Operating revenues and expenses for the Authority are those that result from providing water and collection service and related activities.

Income Taxes - The Authority is exempt from Federal and State income taxes.

Regulatory - The Authority is a regulated utility, and its rates are set by the PUC. For rate-making purposes, depreciation expense is excluded while principal payments and capital outlays are included in the total expenses to arrive at a regulatory net income (loss). For this reason, the net income (loss) on a regulatory basis differs from the change in net position in the audited financial statements, which are prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Summarized Financial Information - The financial information for the year June 30, 2019, presented for comparative purposes is not intended to be a complete financial statement presentation. Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements may have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current year financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounting standards that the Authority is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impacts in future financial statements include:

GASB Statement No. 83, *Certain Asset Retirement Obligations*. This statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2019. The objective of this statement is to establish criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset retirement obligations. The Authority is in the process of evaluating this statement and does not expect an impact to the financial reporting framework in Fiscal Year 2021.

GASB Statement No. 84, *Fiduciary Activities*. This statement is effective for period beginning after December 15, 2019. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. An activity meeting the criteria should present a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-type activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less. The Authority is in the process of evaluating this statement and expects an impact to the financial reporting framework in Fiscal Year 2021.

GASB Statement No. 87, *Leases*. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2021, and all reporting period thereafter. This Statement requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use leased assets. The lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The Authority is in the process of evaluating this statement and does not expect a significant impact to the financial accounting and reporting framework in Fiscal Year 2022.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period. This statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2020. The objective of this Statement is (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period, and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The Authority implemented this Statement early in Fiscal Year 2019.

GASB Statement No. 90, *Majority Equity Interest – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 16*. This Statement is effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2019. This statement improves the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and improves the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government's holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment or permanent fund. The Authority determined that these requirements are not expects to have a significant impact on the financial reporting of the Authority.

GASB Statement No. 91, *Conduit Debt Obligations*. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The primary objectives of this statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer, establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving required not disclosures. The Authority is in the process of evaluating this statement and will complete their evaluation prior to the required implementation date of Fiscal Year 2023.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash Deposits – The Authority's cash deposits are held in one financial institution. The carrying amount of deposits is separately displayed on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Fiduciary Net Position as "cash and cash equivalents."

The carrying value of deposits, investments and petty cash funds reported on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Fiduciary Net Position as "cash and cash equivalents" are as follows:

	Carrying Value of Deposits
Business-Type Activities	32,275,224
Petty Cash	300
OPEB Trust Fund	262,098.76
Pension Trust Fund	6,502,010
Total Carrying Value	\$ 39,039,633

Essential risk information regarding the Authority's deposits and investments is presented below.

In accordance with Rhode Island General Laws, Chapter 35-10.1, depository institutions holding deposits of the State, its agencies or governmental subdivisions of the State, shall at a minimum, insure or pledge eligible collateral equal to one hundred percent of time deposits with maturities greater than sixty days. Any of these institutions, which do not meet minimum capital standards prescribed by federal regulators, shall insure or pledge eligible collateral equal to one hundred percent of deposits, regardless of maturity.

The carrying amount of the Authority's deposits at June 30, 2020 was \$39,039,633 and the bank balance was \$39,229,959.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the Authority will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2020, \$38,979,959 of the Authority's bank balance of \$39,229,959 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Cash deposits	\$	622,261
Cash and short term		31,843,589
Fiduciary fund investments		6,764,109
Total Bank Balance	\$	39,229,959
Insured (FDIC)	\$	250,000
Uninsured	\$	38,979,959
	\$	39,229,959
	-	

Investments – Investments are stated at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority follows the guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures in accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, "Fair Value Measurement and Application".

GASB Statement No. 72 establishes a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Investment (Continued)

Level 1- Unadjusted quoted priced in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (supported by little or no market activity). Inputs include management's own assumption about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including assumptions about risks).

Investments:	June 30, 2020	Quoted Price in Active Market for Identical Assets (Level 1)*	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable (Level 3)
Money Market Fund	\$31,843,588	\$-	\$-	\$31,843,588
Pension Fund:				
Specialty	128,476	128,476	-	-
International Stocks	797,399	797,399	-	-
Small-Cap Stocks	259,396	259,396	-	-
Mid-Cap Stocks	715,529	715,529	-	-
Large-Cap Stocks	2,019,052	2,019,052	-	-
Bonds	1,939,588	1,939,588	-	-
Other - Fixed	642,570	642,570	-	-
OPEB Fund:				
Vanguard	262,099	262,099		
Total investments	\$38,607,697	\$ 6,764,109	\$ -	\$31,843,588

Interest Rate Risk

Funds held by the Authority are invested in accordance with the Authority's investment policy. This investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rates.

In connection with the issuances of \$10 million of general revenue bonds in July 2001, \$24.4 million of general revenue bonds in December 2002, \$10.4 million of general revenue in April 2004, and \$17.3 million of general revenue in July 2012, the proceeds from the bonds along with subsequent debt payments by the Authority and unspent operating income are maintained in cash accounts held in trust by the trustee.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

The Authority's investment policy is governed by the general bond resolution and the series resolution for all transactions covered by bond funding of the Authority. All investments are managed through the trustee of the Authority and invested as allowed.

The Authority established an "Infrastructure Replacement Fund" in conformity with all applicable provisions of state laws; Chapter 46-13 of the General Laws of Rhode Island, Public Drinking Water Supply. The dedicated fund for infrastructure replacement was \$282,626 and \$282,626 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Credit Risk - The Authority's investment policy objective states that all financial assets held by the Authority shall be invested in a manner that will preserve the value and safety of capital. The Authority shall invest funds in order to maximize earnings and minimize risk during the period of availability of the funds. The Authority's investment policy limits investments to U.S. Treasury securities, securities of the U.S. government agencies and instrumentalities that are backed by the full faith and credit or guarantee of the U.S. government, which have a liquid market with a readily determinable market value, investment- grade obligations of the State of Rhode Island, or any municipality or political subdivision of the State of Rhode Island, repurchase agreements backed by collateral, certificate of deposits, money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. agency obligations and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such securities and governmental investment products backed by collateral consisting of U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency securities.

The Authority follows the credit risk policy associated with the Authority's general bond resolutions. The Authority's credit ratings for cash equivalents are as follows:

Money Market Treasury Obligation Fund Credit Rating

AAA (Moody's)

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Authority's investment policy is not specific but states that investments shall be diversified to minimize the risk of loss that may occur due to concentration in a specific maturity, a specific issue or a specific class of securities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 3. CAPITAL ASSETS

The cost and activity of water capital assets in service and related accumulated depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

	Balance at 6/30/2019	Increases	Decreases	Balance at 6/30/2020
Capital assets, not being depreciated:				
Land	\$ 1,836,045	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 1,836,045
Construction in progress	9,546,667		809,510	8,737,157
Total capital assets, not				
being depreciated	11,382,712		809,510	10,573,202
Capital assets, being depreciated:				
Buildings and improvements	15,504,665	8,516	-	15,513,181
Infrastructure	156,259,566	7,589,226	-	163,848,792
Machinery and equipment	783,459	2,026,098	13,555	2,796,002
Vehicles	793,823	91,596	95,003	790,416
Total capital assets,				
being depreciated	173,341,513	9,715,436	108,558	182,948,391
Accumulated depreciation				
Buildings and improvements	5,935,376	721,172	-	6,656,548
Infrastructure	19,897,275	2,134,055	-	22,031,330
Machinery and equipment	290,609	171,793	8,811	453,591
Vehicles	569,638	82,178	95,003	556,813
Total accumulated depreciation	26,692,898	3,109,198	103,814	29,698,282
Total capital assets,				
being depreciated, net	146,648,614	6,606,238	4,744	153,250,109
Capital assets, net	\$158,031,326	\$ 6,606,238	\$ 814,254	\$163,823,311

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 4. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The Authority issues revenue bonds to support various projects. The following is a summary of the bond activity for the year ended June 30, 2020:

Description	Balance June 30, 2019	Additions	Reductions	Balance June 30, 2020	Amounts due within one year
Revenue bonds:					
July 2012 Series A bearing interest at 4%-5% and maturing in 2023 April 2017 Series A bearing interest at	\$ 8,175,000	\$-	\$1,775,000	\$ 6,400,000	\$1,870,000
2.035% and maturing in 2024	8,700,000		1,670,000	7,030,000	1,705,000
	16,875,000		3,445,000	13,430,000	3,575,000
Add (less):					
Unamortized discount	23,884		7,746	16,138	7,746
Total long-term liabilities	\$16,851,116	\$ -	\$3,437,254	\$13,413,862	\$3,567,254

The annual debt service requirements of the general long-term bonds payable as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Fiscal year ended June 30:	Principal	Interest	Total
2021	\$ 3,575,000	\$ 416,310	\$ 3,991,310
2022	3,695,000	285,989	3,980,989
2023	3,030,000	170,329	3,200,329
2024	3,130,000	69,834	3,199,834
	\$13,430,000	\$ 942,462	\$14,372,462

The Authority's outstanding bonds from *direct borrowings* related to business type activities of \$13,430,000 are secured by the Authority's pledge of all revenues, monies, securities, receivables, and other funds as well as the proceeds of the sale of the Authority's real property pursuant to a mortgage on its water supply, treatment and distribution facilities, exclusive of monies collected as water quality protection charges.

The Authority must meet certain financial covenants. The Authority was in compliance with all such covenants at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 5. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Authority's employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on years of service with the Authority. At the termination of service, an employee is paid for accumulated unused vacation leave. The Authority has determined that the dollar value of accumulated accrued vacation leave, valued at the current rate of pay, at June 30, 2020 to be \$191,288. The accrued vacation is reported on the Statement of Net Position as accrued liabilities.

The changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows:

					Amounts
					Due Within
	June 30, 2019	Additions	Payments	June 30, 2020	One Year
Compensated absences	\$ 171,105	\$20,183		\$ 191,288	\$ 15,303

NOTE 6. NET POSITION

KCWA's net position is presented in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets – Net investment in capital assets reflects the portion of net position associated with nonliquid capital assets, less outstanding capital assets related debt. The net investment in capital assets also includes cash or cash equivalents restricted for the acquisition of capital assets or debt service.

Restricted – This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted – This category represents the residual amount of net position not included in the net investment in capital assets or the restricted category.

NOTE 7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description

The Kent County Water Authority administers the pension plan (plan) a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides pensions for all permanent full-time general employees of the Authority.

Benefits provided

To participate in the Plan, employees must be at least twenty-one years of age and be employed by the Authority for a minimum of 12 months. The plan provides retirement, and death benefits to plan members based upon the average of the highest consecutive five years of compensation of the last 10 years of participation. The Authority is responsible for making all contributions to the Plan. The benefits provisions and all other requirements under the Plan are established by the Authority's board of directors. A copy of the Plan statements may be obtained by contacting the Authority.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Plan membership

At June 30, 2020, pension plan membership consisted of the following:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits from the plan	23
Terminated members entitled to future benefits	16
Active plan members	33
Total	72

Contributions

In the January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation, the Authority utilized the aggregate actuarial method to determine the annual required employer contributions. This method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities. Therefore, the entry age method was used to prepare the funded status of the Plan. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the fair value of investments.

The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

The Authority's funding policy provides for employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The contribution requirements of the Authority are established and may be amended by the Authority's board of directors.

Net Pension Liability of the Authority

The components of the net pension liability of the Authority at June 30, 2020, were as follows:

Total pension liability	\$7,915,373
Plan fiduciary net position	(6,502,010)
Authoritys' net pension liability	\$1,413,363
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability	82.14%

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset)

	Total Pension Liability	Plan Fiduciary Net Position	Net Position Liability
Balance at June 30, 2019	\$ 7,412,187	\$ 6,466,735	\$ 945,452
Service cost	145,857		145,857
Interest on total pension liability	503,298		503,298
Differences between expected and actual experience	219,926		219,926
Changes in assumptions	14,824		14,824
Contributions - employer		249,230	(249,230)
Contributions - employee			-
Net investment income		166,764	(166,764)
Benefit payments	(380,719)	(380,719)	-
Administrative expenses			-
Other changes			
Net changes	503,186	35,275	467,911
Balances at June 30, 2020	\$ 7,915,373	\$ 6,502,010	\$1,413,363

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Discount rate	7.00% (7.25% prior to June 30, 2017)
Compensation increase	Salary is assumed to increase 3.00% annually
Social security wage base	The taxable wage base is assumed to increase 2.5% annually
Mortality	Mortality rates are assumed in accordance with the Sex-Distinct IRS 2020 combined static mortality table
Retirement	All participants are assumed to retire at age 62 or current age, if older
Disability	None assumed
Form of payment	Participants are assumed to elect the normal form of annuity
Marriage	75% of participants are assumed to be married; husbands are assumed to be three years older than wives
Employees	No new or rehired employees are assumed for valuation purposes

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2019–June 30, 2020.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 (see the discussion of the pension plan's investment policy) are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class	Target Allocation	Expected Real Rate of Return
Domestic equity	45%	5.50%
International equity	13%	5.75%
Fixed income	30%	3.25%
Real estate	2%	5.00%
Cash	10%	2.00%
Total	100%	

Investment policy

The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the board of directors by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the board to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset classes. The pension plan's investment policy discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class allocations over short time spans.

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Real estate assets are reported at fair value utilizing an income approach to valuation. By contract, an independent appraisal is obtained once every year to determine the fair market value of the real estate assets.

Concentrations

As of June 30, 2020, 5% or more of Plan assets were held in the following individual funds:

Fund	Concentration
Nationwide Fixed Fund	9.90%
Vanguard Mid-Cap Index	9.00%
Vanguard Growth Index	8.20%
Vanguard High Yield Corporate	5.00%
American Fund AMCAP	9.10%
American Fund American Mutual	8.90%
Prudential Total Return Bond Fund	10.00%
LeggMason Core Bond Fund	10.00%

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 7. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that the Authority's contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Authority, calculated using the discount rate of 7 percent, as well as what the Authority's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8 percent) than the current rate:

	Current			
	1% Decrease (6.00%)	Discount Rate (7.00%)	1% Increase (8.00%)	
Authority's net pension liability	\$ 2,270,674	\$ 1,413,363	\$ 684,185	

Pension expense and deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pension

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognize pension expense of \$336,525. At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows	Deferred Inflows	
Liability experience	\$ 297,591	\$ (456,897)	
Assumption changes	305,853	(9,018)	
Investment experience	207,385		
Total	\$ 810,829	\$ (465,915)	

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal	Expense
Year End	Recognition
2021	30,487
2022	72,864
2023	84,806
2024	69,228
2025	12,500
After 2025	75,029
Total	344,914

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 8. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description

The Authority's Post-Employment Medical Benefit Plan is a single-employer defined benefit postretirement health and life insurance program. All full-time employees are eligible to receive health and life insurance coverage after retirement. Retirement eligibility for continued health insurance coverage is age 62 with at least 20 years of service.

Benefits Provided

Employees are eligible for life insurance coverage if they retire on or after age 62. Spousal and/or family health coverage is not provided for under the postretirement program. The Authority will provide eligible retirees continued individual health and dental insurance comparable to the active employee plans. Retirees age 65 and older are eligible for an Individual Prescription Coverage (Part D) Medicare Supplement Plan as well as continued dental coverage. The full cost of postretirement medical and dental coverage is provided by the Authority. Eligible retirees receive term life insurance in the amount of \$2,000. The Authority provides the full cost of this insurance.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2020 (the measurement date), the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

	Inactive or		
		Beneficiaries	
	Active	Receiving	
Description	Employees	Benefits	Total
Number	32	15	47
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 8. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Description	Assumption
Measurement Date	July 1, 2017
Reporting Date	June 30, 2020
Liability Interest Rate	4.00%
Plan Election	All eligible retirees are assumed to elect available coverage at age 62, switching coverage to Plan 65 at age 65, as applicable.
Health Care Trend Rates	Medical coverage costs are assumed to increase 5.0% per year in fiscal 2018 and beyond. Dental coverage costs are assumed to increase 4.0% in fiscal 2018 with trend rates decreasing 0.25% each year to an ultimate rate of 3.5% per year in fiscal 2020 and beyond.
Cost Method	Projected Unit Credit method. Benfits are accrued on service from date of hire to date of first eligibility.
Changes in Assumptions	The mortality assumption has been updated from the 2014 IRS static mortality table to Sex-Distinct IRS 2020 Combined Static Mortality Table.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 8. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

		Long-term
	Target	Expected Real
Asset Class	Allocation	Rate of Return
Domestic Equity	48%	5.50%
International Equity	21%	5.75%
Fixed Income	23%	3.25%
Real Estate	8%	5.00%
Cash	0%	2.00%
Total	100%	

Discount Rate

The single equivalent discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.00 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Authority contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

	Increase (Decrease)				
	Total OPEB Liability	Plan Fiduciary Net Position	Net OPEB Liability		
Balance at June 30, 2019	\$ 5,314,429	\$ 174,625	\$ 5,139,804		
Service cost	191,042	-	191,042		
Interest	210,553	-	210,553		
Differences between actual and expected experience	-	-	-		
Changes in assumptions	-	-	-		
Benefit payments, including refunds	(95,054)	(95,054)	-		
Administrative expenses		-	-		
Contributions - employer	-	175,054	(175,054)		
Contributions - active employees		-	-		
Net investment income		7,474	(7,474)		
Net changes	306,541	87,474	219,067		
Balances at June 30, 2020	\$ 5,620,970	\$ 262,099	\$ 5,358,871		

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 8. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates.

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.00 percent) than the current discount rate:

	Impact of 1% Change in Discount Rate						
	1% Decrease (3.00%)	Current discount rate (4.00%)	1% Increase (5.00%)				
Total OPEB liability	6,433,304	5,358,871	4,531,813				

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates.

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

	Impact of 1%	Change in Healthcar	re Trend Rate
	1% Decrease	Current trend	1% Increase
	(3.00%)	rate (4.00%)	(5.00%)
Total OPEB liability	4,398,014	5,358,871	6,599,325

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in this report on the "Fiduciary Fund" pages.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of \$291,876. At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

	Defe Outf	rred lows	Defe Info	
Liability experience	\$	-	\$	-
Assumption change		-		-
Investment experience	2,	,132		_
Total	\$ 2,	,132	\$	_

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 8. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:		
2021	\$	144
2022	\$	144
2023		377
2024		1,467
Subtotal - all years	\$ 2	2,132

Payable to the OPEB Plan

At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported a payable of \$0 for the outstanding amount of contributions to the OPEB Trust required for the year ended June 30, 2020.

NOTE 9. WATER QUALITY PROTECTION CHARGES PAYABLE

Pursuant to the rules and procedures of the Public Drinking Water Protection Program as promulgated by the Rhode Island Water Resources Board, the Authority has imposed a water quality protection charge on its customers. Prior to June 30, 1992, the Authority accounted for all water quality protection charges imposed as a liability due to the Authority's position that the rules and procedures regarding the imposition of the water quality protection charge did not adequately address the Authority's status as both a purchaser and supplier of water. The law governing the implementation of the water quality protection charge payable of \$0.

NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the ordinary course of its operations, the Authority is a party to various claims, legal actions and complaints, and adequately provides for losses and accrues liabilities for losses when they are both probable and can be reasonably estimated.

As of June 30, 2020, the Authority had no pending contingencies to report.

NOTE 11. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Authority periodically submits rate and compliance fillings with the RIPUC to receive rate relief for amounts equal to rate increases awarded by the RIPUC to the Providence Water Supply Board, the Authority's main supplier.

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT

Insurance Held

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, property and casualty, workers' compensation, unemployment and employee health and life insurance claims.

Buildings are fully insured against fire, theft, and natural disaster to the extent that losses exceed \$1,000 per incident. Directors, officers, and Board members are insured for a maximum of \$5,000,000 per occurrence and annual aggregate.

The Authority takes part in a voluntary workers compensation marketplace with an A.M. Best's A+ rate insurance carrier (The Hartford).

The Pool is self-sustaining through member premiums and reinsures through commercial companies for stop loss insurance.

The Authority has a third-party insured health care program for its employees for which the Authority pays 100% of the premium costs.

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Authority will be paying in full the 2012 Series A bond and 2017 Series A bond on January 15, 2021. This will save the Authority approximately \$218,000 of interest. By paying both of these bonds early, the Authority will also be closing five restricted accounts and therefore streamlining our restricted accounts with Bank of New York Mellon.

The Authority currently operated out of its office and maintenance facility located at 1072 Main Street, West Warwick, Rhode Island. These facilities were originally built at the turn of the century with modifications and new garages in the 1970's. Several additional renovations have been accomplished to support increased operations and accommodate capital equipment acquisitions, spare parts warehousing and workforce needs. These existing facilities have no usable area for additional expansion and the Authority believes they can no longer support the Authority's daily operations. The Kent County Water Authority requested proposals and engaged a professional architecture and engineering firm to conduct a facilities analysis and evaluation study. One element of the study was to review available land options in concert with conceptual designs and needs analysis to determine viability of sites. It is the intention of the Authority to purchase land based on the study through approved capital improvements initiatives over the next fiscal year to site a future office and maintenance facility.

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

	 2020	 2019	 2018	 2017	 2016	 2015
Total pension liability						
Normal cost	\$ 145,857	\$ 136,977	\$ 131,181	\$ 126,528	\$ 114,734	\$ 144,147
Interest	503,298	498,457	454,815	444,406	431,804	419,030
Experience (gain) or loss	219,926	(252,079)	134,135	(113,280)	(120,312)	(203,680)
Assumption changes	14,824	(10,960)	176,864	179,224	12,993	74,562
Benefit payments	 (380,719)	 (266,738)	 (264,564)	 (266,989)	 (263,800)	 (260,720)
Net change in total pension liability	503,186	105,657	632,431	369,889	175,419	173,339
Total pension liability - beginning	 7,412,187	 7,306,530	 6,674,099	 6,304,210	 6,128,791	 5,955,452
Total pension liability - ending (a)	\$ 7,915,373	\$ 7,412,187	\$ 7,306,530	\$ 6,674,099	\$ 6,304,210	\$ 6,128,791
Pension fiduciary net position						
Employer contributions	\$ 249,230	\$ 262,152	\$ 222,207	\$ 243,161	\$ 246,738	\$ 277,560
Expected investment return	450,404	429,037	400,034	375,678	379,448	369,051
Additional investment return	(283,640)	(77,890)	59,714	211,884	(393,374)	(222,627)
Other	(380,719)	(266,738)	(264,564)	(266,989)	(263,800)	(260,720)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position	35,275	346,561	417,391	563,734	(30,988)	163,264
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning	 6,466,735	 6,120,174	 5,702,783	 5,139,049	 5,170,037	 5,006,773
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)	 6,502,010	 6,466,735	 6,120,174	 5,702,783	 5,139,049	 5,170,037
Net pension liability (asset) - ending (a) - (b)	\$ 1,413,363	\$ 945,452	\$ 1,186,356	\$ 971,316	\$ 1,165,161	\$ 958,754

* Only six years out of the required ten were made available in the actuarial report.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015
Total pension liability	\$7,915,373	\$7,412,187	\$7,306,530	\$6,674,098	\$6,304,210	\$ 6,128,791
Plan fiduciary net position	6,502,010	6,466,735	6,120,174	5,702,783	5,139,049	5,170,037
Net pension liability (asset)	\$ 1,413,363	\$ 945,452	\$ 1,186,356	\$ 971,315	\$1,165,161	\$ 958,754
End of year funding percentage	82.14%	87.24%	83.76%	85.45%	81.52%	84.36%
Covered payroll**	2,286,296	2,248,514	2,063,078	1,996,345	1,963,460	1,798,468
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll	61.82%	42.05%	57.50%	48.65%	59.34%	53.31%

* Only six years out of the required ten were made available in the actuarial report.

** Reflects revised definition per GASB 82.

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015
Actuarially determined contribution	\$ 280,948	\$ 249,230	\$ 262,152	\$ 222,207	\$ 243,161	\$ 246,738
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution	280,948	249,230	262,152	222,207	243,161	246,738
Contribution deficiency (excess)	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Covered payroll**	2,286,296	2,248,514	2,063,078	1,996,345	1,963,460	1,798,468
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll	12.29%	11.08%	12.71%	11.13%	12.38%	13.72%

* Only six years out of the required ten were made available in the actuarial report.

** Reflects revised definition per GASB 82.

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Investment Returns

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

	2020	2019	2018	2017	2016	2015
Annual money-weighted rate of						
return net of investment expense	2.61%	5.74%	8.09%	11.46%	-0.27%	2.92%

* Only six years out of the required ten were made available in the actuarial report.

Required Supplementary Information

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Net Pension Liability

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Discount rate	7.00% (7.25% prior to June 30, 2017)
Compensation increase	Salary is assumed to increase 3.00% annually
Social security wage base	The taxable wage base is assumed to increase 2.5% annually
Mortality	Mortality rates are assumed in accordance with the Sex-Distinct IRS 2020 combined static mortality table
Retirement	All participants are assumed to retire at age 62 or current age, if older
Disability	None assumed
Form of payment	Participants are assumed to elect the normal form of annuity
Marriage	75% of participants are assumed to be married; husbands are assumed to be three years older than wives
Employees	No new or rehired employees are assumed for valuation purposes
Termination	Termination of employment is assumed according to Scale T-1 from the Pension Actuary's Handbook. Representative termination rates are listed below and are the same for both males and females.

Age	Rate	Age	Rate	Age	Rate
20	5.44%	35	2.35%	50 +	0.00%
25	4.89%	40	1.13%		
30	3.70%	45	0.27%		

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2019	June 30, 2018
Total OPEB liability			
Service cost	\$ 191,042	\$ 183,694	\$ 176,629
Interest on net OPEB liability and service cost	210,553	198,763	187,567
Differences between actual and expected experience	-	-	-
Changes of assumptions	-	-	-
Benefit payments, including refunds	(95,054)	(87,695)	(84,292)
Net change in total OPEB liability	306,541	294,762	279,904
Total OPEB liability - beginning	5,314,429	5,019,667	4,739,763
Total OPEB liability - ending (a)	\$ 5,620,970	\$ 5,314,429	\$ 5,019,667
OPEB fiduciary net position			
Benefit payments, including refunds	\$ (95,054)	\$ (87,695)	\$ (84,292)
Trust administrative expenses	-	-	-
Contributions - employer	175,054	167,695	164,292
Contribution - Active employees	-	-	-
Net investment income	7,474	13,455	1,170
Net change in plan fiduciary net position	87,474	93,455	81,170
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning	174,625	81,170	
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)	\$ 262,099	\$ 174,625	\$ 81,170
Plan's net pension liability - ending (a) - (b)	\$ 5,358,871	\$ 5,139,804	\$ 4,938,497
End of year funding percentage	4.66%	3.29%	1.62%
Covered payroll	\$ 2,286,296	\$ 2,248,514	\$ 2,063,078
Net pension liability divided by covered payroll	234.39%	228.59%	239.38%

*- This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a 10-year trend is compiled, OPEB plans should present information for those year for which information available.

Required Supplementary Information

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - OPEB

Last Ten Fiscal Years June 30, 2020

	June 30, 2020		June 30, 2019		June 30, 2018	
Actuarial determined contribution	\$	476,845	\$	469,288	\$	450,263
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution Contribution deficiency (excess)	\$	175,054 301,791	\$	167,695 301,593	\$	164,292 285,971
Covered payroll	\$	2,286,296	\$	2,248,514	\$	2,063,078
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll		7.66%		7.46%		7.96%

	June 30, 2020	June 30, 2019	June 30, 2020
Annual money-weighted rate of return,			
net of investment expense	3.48%	11.10%	2.93%

*- This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for 10 years. However, until a 10-year trend is compiled, OPEB plans should present information for those year for which information available.

Required Supplementary Information

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - OPEB

Last Ten Fiscal Years June 30, 2020

Description	Assumption
Measurement Date	July 1, 2017
Reporting Date	June 30, 2020
Liability Interest Rate	4.00%
Plan Election	All eligible retirees are assumed to elect available coverage at age 62, switching coverage to Plan 65 at age 65, as applicable.
Health Care Trend Rates	Medical coverage costs are assumed to increase 5.0% per year in fiscal 2018 and beyond. Dental coverage costs are assumed to increase 4.0% in fiscal 2018 with trend rates decreasing 0.25% each year to an ultimate rate of 3.5% per year in fiscal 2020 and beyond.
Cost Method	Projected Unit Credit method. Benfits are accrued on service from date of hire to date of first eligibility.
Changes in Assumptions	The mortality assumption has been updated from the 2014 IRS static mortality table to Sex-Distinct IRS 2020 Combined Static Mortality Table.

HAGUE, SAHADY & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 126 President Avenue Fall River, MA 02720 TEL. (508) 675-7889 FAX (508) 675-7859 www.hague-sahady.com

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of Kent County Water Authority West Warwick, Rhode Island

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Kent County Water Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 4, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Kent County Water Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Kent County Water Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Kent County Water Authority's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, however, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Kent County Water Authority's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Haque, Sahady 2! Co. PC

Hague, Sahady & Co., CPA's, P.C.

Fall River, Massachusetts September 4, 2020